
1 

Agenda  
Town of Indialantic 

Regular Meeting of the Town Council 
Wednesday, August 12, 2020 at 7:00 p.m. 

NOTICE: This meeting will not be held at Town Hall. This meeting will be held utilizing 
Communications Media Technology in accordance with Governor DeSantis’ Executive 
Order No. 20-69 and Town Emergency Order #2020-09. Those wishing to attend the 

meeting are encouraged to join the meeting online using the Zoom Webinar platform 
or by telephone.  

To access the meeting, please click the link below:  
https://zoom.us/j/96684189111?pwd=aHorTHQ1TnhpdWFFZDIrNEFRdjUvQT09 
Passcode: 709101 
Or iPhone one-tap :  

 US: +13017158592,,96684189111#,,,,,,0#,,709101#  or 
+13126266799,,96684189111#,,,,,,0#,,709101#
Or Telephone:

 Dial(for higher quality, dial a number based on your current location): 
        US: +1 301 715 8592  or +1 312 626 6799  or +1 646 558 8656  or +1 253 215 8782  or +1 346 248 
7799  or +1 669 900 9128  
Webinar ID: 966 8418 9111 
Passcode: 709101 
International numbers available: https://zoom.us/u/aeyIszHXAW 

Instructions on how to join a Zoom meeting: https://support.zoom.us/hc/en-us/articles/201362193-
Joining-a-Meeting\ 

Public Comments, prior to the meeting, can be submitted: 
By drop box until 2:00 p.m., August 12, 2020. Deposit comments in the drop box located at rear 
entrance of Town Hall, 216 Fifth Avenue, Indialantic, FL 32903. 
By email until 2:00 p.m., August 12, 2020: townhall@indialantic.com. Write ‘Public Comments 8-12-
2020’ in the subject line. 

Public Comments, during the meeting, (3 minutes per speaker): 
Click on “Raise Hand” button to speak. The public will be joining the meeting by audio only (no video). 
At the appropriate time, a member of the public can indicate that he/she would like to offer a public 
comment by (1) Pressing the “Raise Hand” button in Zoom; or (2) dialing *9 if calling in on a 
telephone line.  

Technical Issues: If staff or councilmembers experience technical issues the meeting will be 
temporarily halted until the issues are resolved; if the issue cannot be resolved, the meeting will be 
adjourned. 



2 

A. Call to Order:

Honorable Dave Berkman, Mayor
Honorable Stu Glass, Deputy Mayor
Honorable Simon Kemp, Councilmember
Honorable Julie McKnight, Councilmember
Honorable Doug Wright, Councilmember

1. Pledge of Allegiance:

2. Changes to Agenda:

3. Presentations and Proclamations:

4. Public Comments, Non-agenda items:
Note: Persons wishing to address the Town Council on a matter not listed on the agenda may
speak at this time. Click on “Raise Hand” button in Zoom to speak, or dial *9 if calling from a
telephone.
Speakers must provide their name and address and direct their comments to the Mayor and
not to the members of the audience. Please observe the 3-minute time limit and speak only
after being recognized by the Mayor.

5. Public Announcements:
• There are openings on the Code Enforcement Board, Civil Service Board, Heritage

Committee, and Playground Advisory Committee.
• The qualifying period to run for Mayor or Town Council (seats #2 and #4) ends at noon

on August 13, 2020.  For more information, contact the Town Clerk at 321-723-2242 or
by email at rraddon@indialantic.com.

• The first public hearing for the fiscal year 2020-2021 budget will be held on September
9, 2020 at 7:00 p.m., and will be held via Zoom Webinar.

• Town Hall will be closed on Monday, September 7, 2020 in observance of Labor Day.

B. Consent Agenda:

1. Approve Council Meeting Minutes for July 8, 2020
2. Approve Board and Committee Appointments/Reappointments:

a) Playground Advisory Committee (New committee – may consist of up to seven
members, open to resident and nonresidents.)  -- Appoint Nicholle Rothengass;
Appoint Mark McDermott; Appoint James Roland; Appoint Irene Fox-Albury

3. Adopt Resolution 10-2020 prohibiting Low Speed Vehicles on SR A1A (Casey)
4. Approve Goodwin 5K special event 11-24-2020 (Casey)
5. Adopt Resolution 11-2020  Establishing Fund Balance (Casey)



3 

6. Appoint Deputy Mayor Glass as voting delegate for FLOC Annual Business Meeting (Raddon)
7. Resolution 12-2020 Re: Census Partnership (Glass)
8. Resolution 13-2020 Reauthorizing National Flood Insurance Program (Glass)
9. Resolution 14-2020 Re: Funding Assistance for COVID-19 (Glass)

C. Ordinances and Public Hearings:

1. Ordinance 2020-08 Second/Final Reading (Re: Declaring Emergencies):
An Ordinance Of The Town Of Indialantic, Brevard County, Florida; Relating To Emergencies; Making 
Findings; Creating Sections 10-100 Through 10-105, Article Vi., Chapter 10, Town Code Of Ordinances; 
Providing Definitions, Persons Authorized To Declare An Emergency, And Term Of Emergency 
Declaration; Setting Forth Emergency Powers; Providing Penalties And For Liberality Of Construction;   
Providing A Severability/Interpretation Clause; And Providing For An Effective Date. 

2. Ordinance 2020-09 Second/Final Reading (Re: Paid parking rates):
An Ordinance Of The Town Of Indialantic, Brevard County, Florida; Relating To Parking; Making 
Findings; Amending Section 15-18.1 Of The Town Code Of Ordinances, Relating To Rates Of 
Compensation For Parking In Designated Areas Of The Public Right-Of-Way Or Areas Adjacent To The 
Beach; Deleting The Requirement That Parking Meters May Be Coin Operated; Providing That Parking 
Meters May Be Mechanically Or Electronically Operated Or Operated By Pay-By-Phone System; 
Providing For Enforcement; Providing For Change Of Certain Rates By Resolution; Amending The 
Schedule Of Fines In Section 15-23 Of The Town Code Of Ordinances, For Failure To Park Head In; 
Providing A Severability/ Interpretation Clause; And Providing For An Effective Date. 

3. Ordinance 2020-12 First Reading (Re: Adopting a new Town Code):
An Ordinance Adopting And Enacting A New Code For The Town Of Indialantic, Brevard County, 
Florida; Providing For The Repeal Of Certain Ordinances Not Included Therein; Providing A Penalty For 
The Violation Thereof; Providing For The Manner Of Amending Such Code; And Providing When Such 
Code And This Ordinance Shall Become Effective. 

D. Unfinished Business: (None)

E. New Business:

1. (Discussion/Action) Waste Management Recycling Rate Increase (Casey)
2. (Discussion/Action) Annual Halloween Party (Casey)
3. (Discussion/Consensus) Park Hours (Berkman)
4. (Discussion/Consensus) Backyard Chickens (McKnight)
5. (Discussion/Action) Reschedule November Council Meeting due to Veteran’s Day holiday 11-

11-20 (Raddon)
6. (Discussion/Action) Town Manager Annual Evaluation and Merit Increase



4 

F. Administrative Reports:

1. Town Manager Report
2. Town Attorney Report

G. Council Reports:

H. Adjourn:

NOTICE:  PURSUANT TO SECTION 286.0105, FLORIDA STATUTES, THE TOWN HEREBY ADVISES THE PUBLIC THAT IF A PERSON
DECIDES TO APPEAL ANY DECISION MADE BY THIS BOARD, AGENCY, OR COUNCIL WITH RESPECT TO ANY MATTER CONSIDERED
AT ITS MEETING OR HEARING, HE WILL NEED A RECORD OF THE PROCEEDINGS, AND THAT FOR SUCH PURPOSE, AFFECTED
PERSONS MAY NEED TO ENSURE THAT A VERBATIM RECORD OF THE PROCEEDINGS IS MADE, WHICH RECORD INCLUDES THE
TESTIMONY AND EVIDENCE UPON WHICH THE APPEAL IS TO BE BASED.  THIS NOTICE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE CONSENT BY THE
TOWN FOR THE INTRODUCTION OR ADMISSION INTO EVIDENCE OF OTHERWISE INADMISSIBLE OR IRRELEVANT EVIDENCE, NOR
DOES IT AUTHORIZE CHALLENGES OR APPEALS NOT OTHERWISE ALLOWED BY LAW. 
AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT: PERSONS PLANNING TO ATTEND THE MEETING WHO NEED SPECIAL ASSISTANCE MUST
NOTIFY THE OFFICE OF THE TOWN CLERK AT 321-723-2242 NO LATER THAN 48 HOURS PRIOR TO THE MEETING. 



1 

Meeting Minutes 
Town of Indialantic 

Regular Meeting of the Town Council 
Wednesday, July 8, 2020 at 7:00 p.m. 

 This meeting was held utilizing Communications Media Technology in accordance with Governor 
DeSantis’ Executive Order No. 20-69 and Town Emergency Order #2020-09.  

A. Call to Order:
A regular meeting of the Indialantic Town Council was called to order via Zoom Webinar by Mayor 
Berkman on Wednesday, July 8, 2020 at 7:00 p.m. with the following members participating: 

Honorable Dave Berkman, Mayor 
Honorable Stu Glass, Deputy Mayor 
Honorable Simon Kemp, Councilmember 
Honorable Julie McKnight, Councilmember 
Honorable Doug Wright, Councilmember 

Also participating: 

Michael Casey, Town Manager 
Paul Gougelman, Town Attorney 
Rebekah Raddon, Town Clerk 
Michael Connor, Chief of Police 
Jennifer Small, Finance Director 

1. Pledge of Allegiance was led by Mayor Berkman. He explained that public comments would be
limited to 3 minutes per person and those joining the meeting could click the ‘raise hand’
button to comment.

2. Changes to Agenda: Mayor Berkman said the agenda was amended and the following items
were removed:
Waste Management proclamation;
100 Tampa Ave proposed small scale amendment (Ord. 2020-03, first reading); and
100 Tampa Ave proposed rezoning (Ord. 2020-04, first reading).

Mayor Berkman explained that the owner withdrew the application for the small scale
amendment and rezoning and these will not be considered by Council. If the owner wants to
pursue a rezoning, he will have to reapply.

Agenda item B.1



2 

3. Presentations and Proclamations: None.

4. Public Comments, Non-agenda items:

Stephen Baugh, 460 Watson Drive, commented that he clocked his drive time during peak 
hours on residential streets and compared them to the drive times on SR A1A and Fifth 
Avenue, and noted that it is faster for drivers to stay on SR A1A and Fifth Avenue rather than 
cutting through residential streets. He added that drivers can save a full minute of travel time 
by staying on the main roads, and that he has passed his observations on to Mr. Casey. 

Pamela Dunn, 330 Tampa Avenue, thanked Public Works Director Joe Gervais and his staff on 
behalf of the Garden Club by the Sea for their work at Orlando Park. She said they did a great 
job.  

Jeff Brown, 339 Miami Avenue, spoke briefly about a mask ordinance; Mayor Berkman 
indicated this is an item on the agenda and will be spoken about later. 

5. Mayor Berkman read the following Public Announcements:

 There are openings on the Code Enforcement Board and the Civil Service Board.

 Candidate qualifying packets are ready for pick-up at Town Hall. Persons interested in
running for Mayor, Town Council Seat #2, and Town Council Seat #4 in the November
3, 2020 election should contact the Town Clerk. The qualifying period begins at noon
on August 6 and ends at noon on August 13, 2020.

B. Consent Agenda:

1. Approve Council Meeting Minutes for June 10, 2020
2. Approve Board and Committee Appointments/Reappointments:

a) Board of Adjustment – Appoint Michael Hill; Reappoint Safvat Kalaghchy
b) Zoning and Planning Board – Reappoint Christopher Mullen

3. Declare town vehicle 1999 Dodge Ram as surplus and authorize disposal
4. Adopt Resolution No. 09-2020 Budget Adjustment #2 for FY 2019-2020
5. Authorize Town Manager to send letter to FDOT encouraging reducing the speed limit to 35

mph south of Eleventh Avenue

MOTION by Deputy Mayor Glass, seconded by Councilmember Wright, and vote unanimous to 
approve the consent agenda. Motion carried 5-0. 

C. Ordinances and Public Hearings:



3 

1. Ordinance 2020-07 Second/Final Reading (Re: Clarifying term of office for elected officials)

Mr. Gougelman read the ordinance title: 
An Ordinance Of The Town Of Indialantic, Brevard County, Florida, Relating To The Time A 
Councilmember Takes Office; Amending Section 2.03, Town Charter; Making Findings; Providing For A 
Referendum Election And Ballot Language; Amending The Town Charter To Provide When Town 
Council Members, Including But Not Limited To The Mayor, Take Office After An Election And To 
Clarify The Duration Of A Council Member’s Term; Providing For Coordination With The Supervisor Of 
Elections; Providing A Severability Clause; And Providing For An Effective Date. 

There were no public comments. 

MOTION by Councilmember Kemp, seconded by Councilmember McKnight, and vote unanimous to 
adopt Ordinance 2020-07 on second reading. Motion carried 5-0. 

2. Ordinance 2020-03 First Reading (Proposed small scale amendment to the Comprehensive
Plan future land use maps for property located at 100 Tampa Avenue):

Note: This item was removed from the agenda and will not be continued. 

3. Ordinance 2020-04 First Reading (Proposed rezoning for property located at 100 Tampa
Avenue)

Note: This item was removed from the agenda and will not be continued. 

4. Ordinance 2020-08 First Reading (Re: Declaring Emergencies)
Mr. Gougelman read the ordinance title: 
An Ordinance Of The Town Of Indialantic, Brevard County, Florida; Relating To Emergencies; Making 
Findings; Creating Sections 10-100 Through 10-105, Article Vi., Chapter 10, Town Code Of Ordinances; 
Providing Definitions, Persons Authorized To Declare An Emergency, And Term Of Emergency 
Declaration; Setting Forth Emergency Powers; Providing Penalties And For Liberality Of Construction;   
Providing A Severability/Interpretation Clause; And Providing For An Effective Date.  

Mr. Casey explained that this ordinance cleans up language in the Town code for declaring 
emergencies. Mr. Gougelman answered councilmembers’ questions and briefly explained the 
ordinance and stated it is consistent with Florida law. There were no public comments. 

MOTION by Deputy Mayor Glass, seconded by Councilmember Wright, and vote unanimous to 
approve Ordinance 2020-08 on first reading. Motion carried 5-0. 

5. Ordinance 2020-09 First Reading (Re: Paid parking rates)
Mr. Gougelman read the ordinance title: 



4 

An Ordinance Of The Town Of Indialantic, Brevard County, Florida; Relating To Parking; Making 
Findings; Amending Section 15-18.1 Of The Town Code Of Ordinances, Relating To Rates Of 
Compensation For Parking In Designated Areas Of The Public Right-Of-Way Or Areas Adjacent To The 
Beach; Deleting The Requirement That Parking Meters May Be Coin Operated; Providing That Parking 
Meters May Be Mechanically Or Electronically Operated Or Operated By Pay-By-Phone System; 
Providing For Enforcement; Providing For Change Of Certain Rates By Resolution; Amending The 
Schedule Of Fines In Section 15-23 Of The Town Code Of Ordinances, For Failure To Park Head In; 
Providing A Severability/ Interpretation Clause; And Providing For An Effective Date. 

Mr. Casey and Mr. Gougelman answered councilmembers’ questions. It was noted that the ordinance 
cleans up language in the Town’s code, allows for digital kiosks in addition to coin-operated meters, 
and raises the hourly rate for parking from $1.25 to $2.50 per hour which matches the rate charged 
by other beachside municipalities. There were no public comments. 

MOTION by Deputy Mayor Glass, seconded Councilmember Kemp, and vote unanimous to approve 
Ordinance 2020-09 on first reading. Motion carried 5-0. 

D. Unfinished Business:

1. (Discussion/Action) COVID-19

Councilmember Kemp expressed concerns about the rising number of COVID-19 infections and the 
lack of cohesion among local communities in their response to COVID-19. He asked for council’s input 
regarding masks and the possibility for closing beach parking to reduce the number of out-of-town 
visitors.  
Mayor Berkman suggested the council discuss beach access parking, as masks are covered next on 
the agenda. He noted that beach parking could be closed if deemed necessary, and shared his 
opinion regarding the County’s response to COVID-19. Mayor Berkman questioned the effectiveness 
of piecemeal beach access parking closures and recommended anyone with health concerns simply 
avoid the beaches altogether. 

Mayor Berkman asked for public comments; the following people spoke: 

Steve Whitlock, 164 Deland Avenue 
Mel Chang, 225 Wayne Avenue 

Mayor Berkman said the ordinances below regarding face coverings and signage were added to the 
agenda due to a miscommunication, and he would prefer to adopt a single emergency order instead. 
He explained that ordinances are long-term whereas orders are renewed on a weekly basis and 
provide more flexibility. 



5 

a) Emergency Ordinance 2020-10 (Re: Face coverings required in Town facilities.
Ordinance title was not read.)

b) Emergency Ordinance 2020-11 (Re: Face coverings required in essential businesses;
mask policy signage required for all businesses. Ordinance title was not read.)

Mr. Gougelman explained that he drafted an order which combines Ordinances 2020-10 and 2020-
11. Mayor Berkman asked Ms. Raddon to email the order to council and discuss item E. New Business
#2, Request for Traffic Light at Watson/SR A1A.

Request for Traffic Light at Watson/SR A1A: 
After some discussion and input from Police Chief Connor, it was the consensus of the Council to have 
the Town Manager contact FDOT to request a study for a traffic light and/or a pedestrian crossing at 
the intersection of Watson and SR A1A. 

Local Emergency Order No. 2020-10 Regarding Covid-19 - Declaring a Local State of Emergency; and 
Requiring Use of Face Masks in Certain Facilities: 

Mayor Berkman confirmed council received the order, and reiterated that the order will be 
considered for adoption in lieu of Ordinances 2020-10 and 2020-11. 

MOTION by Mayor Berkman, seconded by Deputy Mayor Glass to adopt Local Emergency Order 
2020-10 Regarding Covid-19 - Declaring a Local State of Emergency; and Requiring Use of Face 
Masks in Certain Facilities. 

Mayor Berkman spoke in support of adopting the order which would require employees of essential 
businesses, as well as their patrons, to wear masks. It would also require that all businesses, essential 
or not, post their written mask policy where potential customers can see it before entering the store. 
Mayor Berkman showed images of several mask policy signs. He listed nine essential businesses in 
Town: Ace Hardware, the health food store, the produce store, the seafood store, Publix, the dollar 
store, Village Market, CVS, and 7-11.  
In addition, the order would require masks to be worn in all Town-owned buildings.  
Mr. Gougelman answered a question about bathrooms at Nance Park which he indicated are leased, 
not owned by the Town.  

Mayor Berkman asked for public comments regarding masks; the following people spoke: 

Mel Chang, 225 Wayne Avenue 
Brett Miller, 220 Cocoa Avenue 
Stephen Baughn, 460 Watson Drive 
Jeff Brown, 339 Miami Avenue 
Steve Whitlock, 164 Deland Avenue 



6 

Loren Goldfarb, 320 Deland Avenue 
Pat Maguire, 261 Miami Avenue 

After lengthy discussion, Mayor Berkman summarized the order which, if adopted, would mandate 
the following: 

Masks will be required in all town-owned buildings;  
All businesses with foot traffic must post a written mask policy; and 
Essential businesses must require employees and patrons to wear masks. 

ROLL CALL VOTE: McKnight – No; Glass – Yes; Kemp – Yes; Wright – Yes; Berkman – Yes. 
Motion carried 4-1.  

Ms. Raddon confirmed for the record that ordinances 2020-10 and 2020-11 will not be read or 
considered for adoption. 

Litter Ordinance 
Mr. Casey provided a status update for the litter ordinance which will increase the fines for littering. 
He anticipates it will be on the August agenda. 

E. New Business:

1. (Discussion/Action) Set Proposed Millage Rate and Public Hearing Dates for FY 2020-2021

Budget Adoption

Mr. Casey briefly summarized the proposed budget for the upcoming fiscal year and suggested a 

millage rate of 6.0923, which is a small increase from last year’s millage rate of 5.9484. Mayor 

Berkman explained that this is a starting point, and the council has the option to lower the millage 

rate if desired. 

MOTION by Deputy Mayor Glass, seconded by Councilmember Wright to set the proposed 

millage rate at 6.0923 for the fiscal year 2020-2021 budget. After brief discussion, the motion 

carried unanimously, 5-0. 

MOTION by Councilmember Kemp, seconded by Deputy Mayor Glass, and vote unanimous to 

adopt the following dates for budget hearings:  

Council budget workshop at 6pm on August 12, 2020;  

First budget hearing at 7pm on September 9, 2020; and  

Second/final budget hearing at 5:30 p.m. on September 21, 2020. 



7 

MOTION carried unanimously, 5-0.  

Mr. Casey noted that the Budget and Finance Committee meeting was cancelled and rescheduled. 

F. Administrative Reports:

1. Town Manager Report
Mr. Casey said Town Hall is closed to the public but is still operating and serving the public online
as well as in-person; visitors just need to ring the doorbell for assistance. He is working on
drafting a resolution regarding beach parking areas and asked for direction regarding locations for
permit-only parking. Brief discussion ensued regarding removing meters from Watson Drive and
allowing low-speed vehicles to park for free, and cars with a paid parking permit.
2. Town Attorney Report – none.

G. Council Reports:

Councilmember McKnight asked if council would be interested in considering allowing residents to 
have chickens. Mr. Gougelman indicated it would be appropriate to discuss as an agenda item; Mayor 
Berkman concurred and asked to have it put on next month’s agenda for discussion.  

Councilmember Kemp stated the TPO meeting was cancelled this month. 

Deputy Mayor Glass spoke regarding the Florida League of Cities policy committees and noted the 
deadline to apply to serve on a committee is August 15. 

Mayor Berkman asked residents and visitors to be cautious at the beach due to a high number of 
sharks in the area. He advised councilmembers to refrain from posting remarks or responses on other 
councilmember’s posts on social media regarding items that may be voted on in the future. He spoke 
briefly regarding the actions of an aggressive commenter during the meeting. 

H. Adjourn:

There being no further discussion, the meeting was adjourned at 9:17 p.m. 



8 

___________________________
Dave Berkman, Mayor 

Attested by: 

_____________________________ 
Rebekah Raddon, CMC, Town Clerk 



Agenda item B. 2a



Agenda item B. 2a



Agenda item B. 2a



Agenda item B. 2a



Agenda item B. 2a



Agenda item B. 2a



Agenda item B. 2a



Agenda item B. 2a



B. 3



Agenda item B. 3





B. 4

/Special Event



Agenda item  B. 4





B. 5



Agenda item B. 5







Agenda item B. 6



Agenda items  B. 7, 8, 9



Agenda item B. 7





Agenda item B. 8







Agenda item  B. 9





Agenda item C. 1



Agenda item C. 1

















C. 2



Agenda item C. 2





















C. 3



Agenda item C.3





Agenda item C. 3







































E. 1

















E. 2



E. 3



Agenda item E. 3



E. 4





(excerpt)



Excerpt - IHB Code







Excerpt - Satellite Bch Code







Excerpt - Melbourne Code









Agenda item E. 5



E. 6



Agenda item E. 6



Agenda item E. 6



Agenda item E. 6





Agenda item E. 6







Agenda item E. 6







Agenda item E. 6







Agenda item E. 6







Agenda item  F. 1


































